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FINANCIAL SECTION

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

COLUMBIA GORGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

This section of Columbia Gorge Community College's (the college) annual financial report presents a
comparative analysis of the financial activities of the college for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015
and 2014.
This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the college. To provide
a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the college has established a
comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the college’s assets from loss,
theft or misuse; and, to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the college’s financial
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(U.S. GAAP). Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefit, the college’s
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than
absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatements. As
management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete
and reliable in all material aspects.
U.S. GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A).
OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This discussion and analysis is an introduction to the college's basic financial statements, which is
comprised of entity-wide financial statements prepared in accordance with the accrual basis of
accounting and notes to the basic financial statements. This report also includes required and other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements.
The entity-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
college's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. These entity-wide statements consist
of the statement of net position, statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and
statement of cash flows which are described and analyzed in the following sections. The notes to the
basic financial statements are required to complete the basic financial statements, and are an integral
component thereof.
The college has presented its basic financial statements in accordance with Statement Nos. 34 and 35
of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).
GASB Statement No. 34 stipulates using an economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting. All capital assets and related accumulated depreciation are to be reported in
the statement of net position. All outstanding debt will reduce net position. Depreciation will be
recognized in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. All revenues will be
recognized in the year in which they are earned. Likewise, expenses will be reported in the year
the liability is incurred regardless of when the amount is actually paid. Interest on debt will be accrued
at June 30 and recorded as an expense in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position.
GASB Statement No. 35 applies to public colleges and universities. It stipulates the display and
disclosure requirements of the basic financial statements. The financial information is to be presented
for the college as a whole, rather than a series of fund types. The display and disclosure requirements
are similar to that used by commercial organizations.
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COLUMBIA GORGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
GASB Statement No. 68 was implemented during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, and improves
accounting and financial reporting for pensions. The Statement results from a comprehensive review
of the effectiveness of existing standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with regard
to providing decision-useful information, supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod
equity, and creating transparency.
The basic financial statements are comprised of:
o

Statement of Net Position

o

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

o

Statement of Cash Flows

o

Notes to Basic Financial Statements

A statement of net position presents information on all of the college’s assets and deferred outflows
(what it owns) and liabilities and deferred inflows (what it owes). The difference between total assets
and deferred outflow of resources less total liabilities and deferred inflows is reported as net position.
Over time, changes in net position are an indicator of improving or eroding financial health. Nonfinancial indicators, such as enrollment levels and the condition of the college’s facilities must also
be considered when evaluating the college’s financial position.
The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents the revenues earned and
expenses incurred during the year. As prescribed by GASB, revenues and expenses are reported as
operating or nonoperating. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services
to students. All other revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating.
Revenues are presented by source. Expenses are presented by function. GASB stipulates that State
support and property taxes are reported as nonoperating revenues. This results in the display of a
significant operating loss.
A statement of cash flows is intended to help evaluate the college’s ability to meet its financial
obligations as they become due. Cash inflows and outflows are identified as operating, noncapital
financing, capital and related financing, and investing activities. The nature of operating activities was
described in the previous paragraph. Capital and related financing activities are those items that are
clearly attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of capital assets. This includes the
repayment of debt associated with these assets.
The notes to basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the basic financial statements.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Financial highlights for the college for fiscal year ending June 30, 2015 are described below.



The college’s financial position at June 30, 2015 consists of assets of $36,293,678, deferred
outflow of resources of $1,553,109, liabilities of $21,162,666, deferred inflow of resources of
$2,128,324, and net position of $14,555,797, a decrease of $286,974, 1.9% from the prior
year, net of the restatements.



Total assets decreased in 2015 by $1,839,469 to $36,293,678 primarily due to current
spending activity.
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COLUMBIA GORGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Continued)



Total liabilities decreased in 2015 by $3,756,909 to $21,162,666 primarily due to recording the
pre-SLGRP pooled liability offset by a shift in the net pension liability of $2,483,206 to an asset
and principal payments on bonds payable.



Total net position decreased by $286,974 to $14,555,797, a decrease of 1.9% from the prior
year. Unrestricted net deficit position increased by $345,465 to $(3,930,706) which is primarily
due to current spending activity.



Within net position, the investment in capital assets less any related outstanding debt used to
acquire those assets increased by $151,138 to $16,311,909 in 2015. The college uses these
capital assets to provide services to students; consequently, these assets are not available for
future spending. Although the college's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS
Net position at June 30, 2015 and 2014:
2014
(as restated)

2015
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Other assets

$

Total current assets

1,153,877
2,415,577
1,286,564

$

Increase/
(Decrease)

2,641,292
3,069,318
1,223,147

$

Change %

(1,487,415)
(653,741)
63,417

(56.3) %
(21.3)
5.2

4,856,018

6,933,757

(2,077,739)

(30.0)

1,102,990
30,334,670

31,199,390

1,102,990
(864,720)

100.0
(2.8)

Total noncurrent assets

31,437,660

31,199,390

238,270

Total assets

36,293,678

38,133,147

(1,839,469)

(4.8)

1,010,945

1,105,949

(95,004)

(8.6)

542,164

523,250

18,914

3.6

Liabilities:
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

1,956,657
19,206,009

1,929,189
22,990,386

27,468
(3,784,377)

1.4
(16.5)

Total liabilities

21,162,666

24,919,575

(3,756,909)

(15.1)

2,128,324

-

2,128,324

100.0

16,311,909

16,160,171

151,738

0.9

1,528,807
645,787
(3,930,706)

1,618,116
649,725
(3,585,241)

(89,309)
(3,938)
(345,465)

(5.5)
(0.6)
9.6

(286,974)

(1.9)

Noncurrent assets:
Net pension asset
Capital assets, net

0.8

Deferred outflow of resources:
Deferred charge on refunding
Deferred outflows - pension

Deferred inflows - pension
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt service
Capital projects
Unrestricted
Total net position

$

14,555,797

$

6

14,842,771

$

COLUMBIA GORGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
Current Assets
Current assets of $4,856,018 were more than sufficient to cover current liabilities of $1,956,657. This
represents a current ratio of 2.5 as compared to 3.6 in the prior year. Cash and cash equivalents
decreased by $1,487,415 to $1,153,877 as compared to $2,641,292 in the prior year due to cash of
$7,027,516 provided by noncapital financing activities, offset in part by operating and investing cash
flows.
Noncurrent Assets
The college’s capital assets decreased by $864,720 to $30,334,670 due primarily to annual
depreciation charges exceeding additions for the year. Detailed changes to capital assets are shown
in Note 5 of the Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
Deferred Outflow of Resources
The decrease in the deferred charge for refunding is due to the amortization over the remaining life of
the debt instrument. Additionally, deferred outflows related to pensions is contributions subsequent
to measurement date.
Current Liabilities
The college’s current liabilities consist primarily of various payables for operations, accrued payroll,
taxes and compensated absences, unearned revenue and the current portion of bonds payable.
Current liabilities increased by $27,468 to $1,956,657. Unearned revenue from tuition and fees
decreased by $50,832 to $241,633 because of a reduced number of students enrolled for summer
term.
Noncurrent Liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities consists of other postemployment benefit obligation, pre-SLGRP pooled liability,
deferred accrued bond interest and bonds payable less the current portions of specific obligations.
Noncurrent liabilities decreased by $3,784,377 to $19,206,009 due primarily to principal payments on
bonds payable and the swing in the net pension liability of $2,483,206 to an asset.
The college’s capital investment in real property, construction and improvements for The Dalles and
Hood River campuses are funded by two general obligation bonds. Additional information on the
college’s bonds payable may be found in Note 7 of the Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
Net Position
Total net position decreased by $286,974 to $14,555,797, a decrease of 1.9% from the prior year.
Within net position, the net investment in capital assets is $16,311,909, an increase of $157,738 as
compared to the prior year primarily due to principal payments on bonds payable exceeding annual
depreciation charges. Restricted net position decreased by $93,247 to $2,174,594. Unrestricted net
deficit position increased by $345,465 to $(3,930,706).

7

COLUMBIA GORGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
Revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014:
2015
Operating revenues:
Tuition and fees, net
Grants
Other operating revenue

$

Total operating revenues

Increase/
(Decrease)

2014

2,239,935
2,658,368
638,692

$

2,362,370
3,305,136
674,245

$

Change %

(122,435)
(646,768)
(35,553)

(5.2) %
(19.6)
(5.3)

5,536,995

6,341,751

(804,756)

(12.7)

3,590,443
127,513
726,914
1,044,145
2,492,920
940,748
973,663
2,335,590
300,448

3,931,834
279,794
919,018
1,333,831
3,426,405
1,156,633
989,068
2,951,350
352,470

(341,391)
(152,281)
(192,104)
(289,686)
(933,485)
(215,885)
(15,405)
(615,760)
(52,022)

(8.7)
(54.4)
(20.9)
(21.7)
(27.2)
(18.7)
(1.6)
(20.9)
(14.8)

Total operating expenses

12,532,384

15,340,403

(2,808,019)

(18.3)

Operating loss

(6,995,389)

(8,998,652)

2,003,263

(22.3)

3,006,924
2,499,524
1,603,708
294,871
(696,612)

4,737,108
2,408,889
1,806,940
375,218
(792,095)

(1,730,184)
90,635
(203,232)
(80,347)
95,483

(36.5)
3.8
(11.2)
(21.4)
(12.1)

6,708,415

8,536,060

(1,827,645)

(21.4)

Operating expenses:
Instruction
Public services
Academic support
Student services
Institutional support
Plant operations
Depreciation
Scholarships
Auxiliary enterprises

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
State support
Property taxes
Grants
Other nonoperating revenue
Other nonoperating expenses
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Increase (decrease) in net position

(286,974)

Net position, beginning of year as reported

14,842,771

Restatement

-

Net position, beginning of year as restated
Net position, end of year

(462,592)

14,842,771
$

14,555,797

8

175,618

21,021,469

(6,178,698)

(29.4)

(5,716,106)

5,716,106

(100.0)

15,305,363
$

(38.0)

14,842,771

$

(462,592)

(3.0)

(286,974)

(1.9) %

COLUMBIA GORGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
Revenues
The following graphs show the allocation of revenues for fiscal years 2015 and 2014.
2015 Operating and Nonoperating Revenues

Other nonoperating
revenue
3%
Other
operating
revenue
5%

State support
23%

Property taxes
19%

Tuition
and fees
17%

Grants
33%

2014 Operating and Nonoperating Revenues

Other nonoperating
revenue
Other 3%

Property taxes
15%

State support
30%

operating
revenue
4%

Tuition
and fees
15%

Grants
33%
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COLUMBIA GORGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
Operating Revenues
The sources of operating revenue for the college are tuition and fees, federal, state and local grants,
bookstore sales and other operating revenue. Operating revenues decreased by 12.7% as compared
to 2014.
Tuition and fees, which include all amounts paid for educational purposes, decreased 5.2% by
$122,435 to $2,239,935, which represents 17% of total revenue. Operating revenue from federal, state
and local grants decreased by 19.6% or $646,768 to $2,658,368 due to less awards from Federal
Student Aid than in the previous year.
Nonoperating Revenues
Net nonoperating revenues decreased overall by $1,827,645 to $6,708,415. One of the three largest
nonoperating revenue sources is the State of Oregon which funds FTE reimbursements through the
Community College Support Fund and represents 23% of total revenue. State Community College
Support revenue decreased by 36.5% to $3,006,924 primarily due to receiving three payments in 2015
versus five in 2014 which is consistent with this being the second year of the biennium. The deferrals
were enacted in 2003 by the Oregon Legislature and are scheduled to occur on alternate years so
that the State could balance its biennial budget.
Property taxes increased by 3.8% to $2,499,524 and represents 19% of total revenue. Of the property
taxes received, approximately 58% is attributed to general obligation bond levies and 42% is from the
permanent operating levy rate of $0.2703 per thousand.
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COLUMBIA GORGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
Expenses
The following graphs show the allocation of expenses for the college by functional classification for
fiscal years 2015 and 2014:
2015 Operating and Nonoperating Expenses
Other
operating
and non‐
operating
expenses
21%

Student
services
8%

Plant operations
7%

Instruction
27%

Institutional
support
19%

Scholarships
18%

2014 Operating and Nonoperating Expenses

Student services
8%

Plant operations
7%

Instruction
25%

Other
operating
and non‐
operating
expenses
21%

Institutional
support
21%

Scholarships
18%
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COLUMBIA GORGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
Operating Expenses
Operating expenses decreased by 18.3% to $12,532,384. Instruction expenses are the largest
percentage of total expenses at 27% for a total of $3,590,443. Scholarships distributed as Financial
Aid decreased by 20.9% to $2,335,590 as compared to the prior year and accounts for 18% of total
expenses. Institutional support decreased by 27.2% to $2,492,920 or 19% of total expenses. Plant
operations decreased by 18.7% to $940,748 or 7% of total expenses. Academic support decreased
by 20.9% to $726,914 or 5% of total expenses. Student services expense decreased by 21.7% to
$1,044,145 and represents 8% of total expenses. Depreciation decreased 1.6% to $973,663 or 7% of
total expenses.
Nonoperating Expenses
The largest nonoperating expense was interest on debt of $696,612 and represents 5% of total
expenses.
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COLUMBIA GORGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
The following table shows the statements of cash flows at June 30, 2015 and 2014:

2015
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from tuition and fees
Cash received from grants
Other operating revenue
Cash paid for operating activities

$

Net cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Cash received from state support
Cash received from property taxes
Cash received from grants
Other cash received from noncapital
financing activities
Other cash paid from noncapital
financing activities
Total cash flows from noncapital
financing activities

2014

$

Net cash flows from capital
financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Net change in investments
Earnings on investments
Net cash flows from investing activities
Increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

(29,601)
(759,778)
(237,613)
1,526,374
499,382

(1.3) %
(22.6)
(29.2)
(10.5)

3,006,924
2,528,062
1,603,708

4,737,108
2,441,783
1,806,940

(1,730,184)
86,279
(203,232)

(36.5)
3.5
(11.2)

243,674

298,881

(55,207)

(18.5)

(327,524)

(272,718)

(54,806)

20.1

9,011,994

(117,735)
(1,035,000)
(489,565)

(418,766)
(951,000)
(513,142)

(1,642,300)

(1,882,908)

(6.2)

(1,957,150)

(21.7)

301,031
(84,000)
23,577

(71.9)
8.8
(4.6)

240,608

(12.8)

653,741
51,197

90,402
76,336

563,339
(25,139)

623.1
(32.9)

704,938

166,738

538,200

322.8

(808,455)

(678,960)

84.0

(808,455)

(23.4)

2,641,292
$

$

(8,104,279)

(1,487,415)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

2,277,209
3,357,548
813,855
(14,552,891)

Change %

(7,604,897)

7,054,844

Cash flows from capital financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

2,247,608
2,597,770
576,242
(13,026,517)

Increase/
(Decrease)
in Cash

1,153,877

13

3,449,747
$

2,641,292

$

(1,487,415)

(56.3) %

COLUMBIA GORGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
Operating Activities
The college’s major sources of cash included in operating activities were tuition and fees of
$2,247,608, and grants of $2,597,770. Major operating uses of cash were payments to employees
and suppliers, as well as for student financial aid, totaling $13,026,517. The college used 6.2% or
$499,382 less in cash in its operating activities than in the prior year, due to a decrease in cash from
grants and contracts of $759,778 primarily from Federal Student Aid, a decrease in cash from other
operating revenue of $237,613, and a decrease in cash paid for operating activities of $1,526,374.
Noncapital Financing Activities
State appropriations and property taxes are the primary sources of noncapital financing activities.
Cash provided from noncapital financing activities totaled $7,054,844 primarily from cash received
from state FTE reimbursement of $3,006,924, cash from property taxes of $2,528,062, and cash
received for Pell grants of $1,603,708. Other sources include leases and other nonoperating revenue.
Accounting standards require that these sources of revenue be reported as nonoperating even though
the college depends on these revenues to continue the current level of operations. Cash used by
noncapital financing activities include cash paid for principal and interest payments for pension bonds,
and other nonoperating expenses.
The net cash provided by noncapital financing activities decreased 21.7% or $1,957,150 over the prior
year. Cash received from state appropriations decreased by $1,730,184 due to receiving three
payments versus only five in the prior year which is consistent with this being the second year of the
biennium. Property taxes increased by $86,279. Other nonoperating income decreased by $110,013.
Capital Financing Activities
The capital financing uses of cash were the acquisition of capital assets of $117,735, principal
payments of $1,035,000 and interest payments of $489,565. The net cash used by capital financing
activities decreased by $240,608 or 12.8%. Purchases of capital assets decreased by $301,031
compared to the prior year. Principal paid on long-term debt increased by $84,000. Interest paid on
long-term debt decreased by $23,577.
Investing Activities
Investing activities provided $704,938 in net cash, resulting from earnings on investments of $51,197,
and the net change in investments of $653,741.
Cash provided from earnings on investments decreased by $25,139 to $51,197 as a result of
investment activities. Net change in investments provided $653,741 of cash as compared to providing
$90,402 of cash in the prior year.
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COLUMBIA GORGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets
The college’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2015, amounts to $30,334,670 net of
accumulated depreciation. Investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and improvements,
and furniture, equipment, and machinery. Additional information on the college’s capital assets can be
found in Note 5 of this report.
Debt Administration
As of June 30, 2015, the college had total debt outstanding of $19,041,395, including series 2012
bond premium of $855,493. Of this amount, $13,485,000 is the outstanding general obligation bond
series 2012 refunding; $3,361,902 is the outstanding pension obligation bond series 2003 including
both the current and deferred interest balances, and $1,339,000 is the outstanding full faith and credit
financing agreement. Total debt outstanding was reduced by $1,210,677 of principal payments and
amortization of the premium.
Additional information on the college’s bonds payable can be found in Note 7 of this report.
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S OPERATIONS
Measured revenue growth is anticipated in the near term as the regional economy continues to
improve. The college’s three primary sources of income are student tuition and fees, State of Oregon
Community College Support Fund appropriations, and property taxes. Each funding source fluctuates
with the condition of the economy. Enrollment typically falls during periods of economic expansion
when fewer displaced workers are in need of professional retraining. The lost revenue from lower
enrollment is partially replaced by larger state appropriations and property tax.
The countercyclical nature of tuition and fee revenue to the college’s other major revenue sources
contributes to the college’s overall financial stability. College enrollment during the height of the last
recession was 1,270 full-time equivalent students. College enrollment has since followed state-wide
patterns, declining roughly 25% to 964 full-time equivalent students in the last full academic year.
College revenues have remained relatively stable through the high volatility in enrollment, declining
less than 6% from recession era peaks to the most recent full fiscal year. The counter-balancing
relationship between tuition and fee revenue and the college’s other major revenue sources is
expected to continue for the foreseeable future.
State Appropriations
The State of Oregon Community College Support Fund (CCSF) receives appropriations from the State
General Fund. CCSF revenues are the college’s largest revenue source. CCSF appropriations grew
moderately in the current biennium, reversing previous recession era declines. Personal income tax
is the largest discretionary revenue source for the State of Oregon. Consequently, State of Oregon
General Fund resources have grown significantly during this latest recovery. The December 2015
Oregon Economic and Revenue Forecast issued by the State of Oregon Department of Administrative
Services anticipates Net State General Fund Resources to increase 12.2% in the 2017-19 biennium.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S OPERATIONS (Continued)
Currently at $550 Million, the 2015-17 CCSF was larger than the last highest CCSF appropriation of
$500 Million in the 2007-09 State of Oregon Biennial Budget. While state appropriations have grown
in nominal dollars, the proportion of state resources dedicated to community colleges continues to
remain stagnate. The 2015-17 legislatively adopted budget dedicated 2.9% of General Fund resources
to the CCSF. This compares with 4.4% in the 2007-09 biennium, which was the last pre-recession
state budget. Nationwide studies of higher education spending consistently rank Oregon near the
bottom of all states in per pupil spending.
Relatively low community college appropriations to-date when compared to historical Oregon
spending and spending in other U.S. states, combined with strong future revenue forecasts, indicate
that state resources for community colleges will likely continue to increase in the mid-term.
Tuition and Fees
The largest source of college operating revenues are direct student charges. Student revenue varies
directly with enrollment. Tuition and fee revenue peaked at 44% of the college’s structural operating
revenues in the Fiscal Year 2011-12. In the most recent fiscal year, the proportion has fallen to 37%.
This continues to be a larger proportion of the college’s operating budget than before the last recession
when tuition and fee revenue was less than 30% of total operating revenues. The college has generally
set tuition and fee rates at or near state-wide averages and will likely continue to do so.
After several years of economic recovery and declining unemployment rates, Oregon community
college enrollment is likely at or near its trough. Since World War II, there has been at least one
recession every decade. The current economic expansion will likely continue for at least the near term,
contributing to stagnant enrollment levels. Over the mid to long-term, significant enrollment increases
are anticipated as the college’s district population continues to grow faster than state-wide averages.
Property Tax
Tax revenues are significant in the college’s mix of revenue sources. The college receives the lowest
property tax support per student of any Oregon community college. This is due to the college’s district
low permanent tax rate and relatively low property values compared to colleges in urban areas.
Similarly to state appropriations, variation in tax revenues are countercyclical to tuition and fee
revenue. Growth in tax revenue is anticipated to outpace historical averages over the next one to two
years due to the recent recovery in the housing market. The college’s district spans two Oregon
counties, Wasco and Hood River. The largest population base and majority of tax revenue has been
generated from Wasco County in the past. Rapid increases in the Hood River housing market may
reverse this pattern. It’s anticipated that in this next fiscal year the majority of property tax revenue will
be generated from Hood River County for the first time in the history of the college.
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REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the college’s finances. Questions
concerning any of the information in this report or requests for additional financial information should
be addressed to:
Chief Financial Officer
Columbia Gorge Community College
400 East Scenic Drive
The Dalles, OR 97058
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
1. COLLEGE
Columbia Gorge Community College (the college), is organized under the general laws of the
State of Oregon and, as such, is a public institution under the general supervision of the State
Board of Education through the Department of Community Colleges and Workforce Development.
The college is an independent municipal corporation under Oregon Revised Statutes. The sevenmember board appoints a president to administer the activities of the college. The college
maintains a main campus in Wasco County and a second campus in Hood River County.
On July 17, 2013, the Northwest Commission on Colleges and Universities approved the college’s
request for independent accreditation, following a journey that began in 2006 upon direction of
the college’s board.
The college had been accredited since its establishment in 1977 through a contract with Portland
Community College (PCC). The college’s quest for independent accreditation enjoyed the full
support and encouragement of PCC, which had been responsible for program review and other
key functions. Graduates also received diplomas from PCC instead of the college.
The college achieved formal candidacy for independent accreditation in 2008, which in itself
allowed the institution to compete for federal grants and award financial aid. Independent
accreditation confers other major benefits, including greater flexibility in developing new
instructional programs, additional access to resources, and most importantly, improved service to
students.
Independent accreditation is a milestone, not a destination. The distinction brings with it the
requirement for continual evaluation and improvement, using specific measures to determine how
the institution is meeting its mission of “Building dreams and transforming lives by providing lifelong educational opportunities that strengthen our community.” That process will never end.
The basic financial statements of the college have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The GASB is the accepted standardssetting body for establishing governmental accounting and reporting principles. The most
significant accounting policies are described below.
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance U.S. GAAP as prescribed by the
GASB, including Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Presentation (Continued)
and Analysis – for Public Colleges and Universities. The college follows the “business-type
activities” reporting requirements of GASB Statement No. 35 that provides a comprehensive onecolumn look at the college’s financial activities.
New Accounting Standards Implemented
GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions (GASB 68),
establishes accounting and disclosure requirements for net pension liabilities, including definition
of balances to be included in deferred inflows and deferred outflows of resources. The specific
accounts impacting the college are detailed below.
Net Pension Liability - Previous standards defined pension liabilities in terms of the Annually
Required Contribution. GASB 68 defines the net pension liability as the portion of the actuarial
present value of projected benefit payments that is attributed to past periods of employee service,
net of the pension plan’s fiduciary net position.
Deferred Inflows of Resources and Deferred Outflows of Resources - GASB 68 includes
recognition of deferred inflows and outflows of resources associated with differences between
expected and actual results. The difference between expected and actual experience with regard
to changes in the college’s proportionate share of net pension liability since the prior
measurement date, economic or demographic factors in the measurement of the total pension
liability and changes in assumptions about future economic or demographic factors or other inputs
are to be recognized in pension expense using a systematic and rational method over a closed
period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees covered by
the plan. The difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments are
to be recognized in pension expense using a systematic and rational method over a closed fiveyear period.
GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the
Measurement Date, an amendment of GASB 68 requires that, at transition, a government
recognize a beginning deferred outflow of resources for its pension contributions, if any, made
subsequent to the measurement date of the beginning net pension liability.
Basis of Accounting
For financial statement reporting purposes, the college is considered a special-purpose
government engaged only in business-type activities. Accordingly, the college’s basic financial
statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis
of accounting. Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which
they are earned and expenses are recognized in the period liabilities are incurred, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. All significant intra-college transactions have been eliminated.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of Accounting (Continued)
Non-exchange transactions, in which the college receives value without directly giving equal value
in return, include property taxes, federal, state, and local grants, state appropriations, and other
contributions. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized as revenue in the
years for which they are levied. Revenue from grants, state appropriations, and other contributions
is recognized in the year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.
Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the resources
are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first permitted; matching requirements, in
which the college must provide local resources to be used for a specific purpose; and expenditure
requirements in which the resources are provided to the college on a reimbursement basis.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and deferred outflows
of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and disclosures of contingent assets
and deferred outflows and liabilities and deferred inflows at the date of the financial statements
and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and are so near their maturity that they present insignificant
risks of changes in value because of changes in interest rates. Cash and cash equivalents are
considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, the Oregon Local Government Investment Pool
(LGIP) and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date
of acquisition. The LGIP is stated at cost, which approximates fair value.
Investments
Oregon Revised Statutes authorize investment in general obligations of the U.S. Government and
its agencies, certain bonded obligations of Oregon municipalities, bank repurchase agreements
and bankers’ acceptances. As of June 30, 2015, and for the year then ended, the college was in
compliance with the aforementioned State of Oregon statutes. Investments are stated at fair
value, which is based on the individual investment’s quoted market prices at year end.
Receivables
All student accounts, grants, student loans and property taxes receivable are shown net of an
allowance for uncollectible accounts. Student accounts receivable are recorded as tuition is
assessed. The allowance for uncollectible accounts is determined based upon aged receivable
balance and likelihood of collection.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Receivables (Continued)
Property taxes are levied and become a lien on all taxable property on July 1. Taxes are payable
on November 15, February 15 and May 15. Discounts are allowed if the amount due is received
by November 15 or February 15. Taxes unpaid and outstanding on May 16 are considered
delinquent. Uncollected taxes are deemed to be substantially collectible or recoverable through
liens; therefore, no allowance for uncollectible taxes has been established. Property taxes
receivable are recognized as revenue when levied.
Inventories
Inventories include textbooks and supplies purchased for resale to students and expendable office
and instructional supplies. The inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost amounts
are determined on the first-in-first-out method.
Capital Assets
Capital assets include land and land improvements; building and building improvements; furniture,
equipment and machinery, and construction in progress. The college’s capitalization threshold is
$5,000 for furniture, equipment and machinery and $50,000 for buildings and building
improvements, and land and land improvements, and a useful life in excess of one year. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are
recorded at fair market value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs
that do not add to the value or functionality of the assets’ lives are not capitalized, but are
expensed as incurred.
Capital assets of the college are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
useful lives:
Building and building improvements
Furniture, equipment and machinery
Land improvements

20-50 years
5-20 years
10-25 years

Compensated Absences
College employees accumulate vacation pay in varying amounts depending on years of continued
service. It is the college's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation
pay. All outstanding vacation time is payable upon termination of employment. Vacation pay is
recorded within accrued payroll and taxes on the Statement of Net Position, and an expense when
earned.
Sick leave accumulates one day per month for full-time employees. Sick leave accumulates for
full-time faculty based on contract days. For a regular 180-day full-time faculty contract, a total of
10 days sick leave is accrued per year. There is no limit on accumulation and it is not compensable
upon termination of employment. No liability is reported for unpaid accumulated sick leave.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Unearned Revenue
Summer term tuition and fees are collected in part in the months of May and June; however, the
revenue and expense of summer term is reflected in the budget for the following fiscal year when
it will be earned. Due to this timing difference, unearned revenue has been recorded to account
for summer term tuition and fees to be recognized as revenue in the month of July.
Grant or contract revenue which was received prior to the occurrence of qualifying expenses and
prior to the end of the fiscal year but was intended for expense in the following fiscal year has
been deferred and recognized as unearned revenue.
Pre-SLGRP Pooled Liability
Actuarially determined liability recorded in the Statement of Net Position based on the college’s
entry into the OPERS State and Local Government Rate Pool. This pre-SLGRP pooled transition
liability is reduced each year by contributions to OPERS and increased for interest charged by
OPERS.
Bonds Payable
Bond premiums and discounts, and any amounts deferred on refunding of debt are amortized
over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest
method. Premiums and discounts are netted against outstanding debt for reporting in the financial
statements. The college reports a deferred charge on refunding as a deferred outflow of
resources.
Pensions
Eligible college employees are participants in the State of Oregon Public Employees Retirement
System (OPERS). For purposes of measuring the net pension liability (asset), deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of the OPERS and additions to/deductions from
OPERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
OPERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported
at fair value.
Other Postemployment Benefit Obligation
The other postemployment benefit (OPEB) obligation is recognized as a long term liability in the
Statement of Net Position, the amount of which is actuarially determined.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Net Position
Net position represents the difference between the college’s total assets and deferred outflow of
resources less total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Net position is classified
according to external donor restrictions or availability of assets for satisfaction of college
obligations. Net position is classified in the following components:
Net investment in capital assets – This component of net position consists of capital assets, net
of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages,
notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of
those assets.
Restricted – This component of net position consists of constraints imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or constraints imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Restrictions may also result from endowment and
similar type funds in which donors or other outside sources have stipulated, as a condition of the
gift instrument, that the principal is to be maintained inviolate and in perpetuity, and invested for
the purpose of producing present and future income, which may either be expended or added to
principal.
Unrestricted – This component of net position consists of resources available to be used for
transactions relating to the general obligations of the college, and may be used at the discretion
of the governing board, as designated, to meet current expenses for specific future purposes.
The college policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes
for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available.
Operating and Nonoperating Revenues and Expenses
Operating revenues and expenses are distinguished from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering
goods in connection with the college’s ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of
the college are charges to students for tuition and fees, grants and contracts for specific operating
activities of the college, and sales of goods and services. Operating expenses include the cost of
faculty, staff, administration and support expenses, bookstore operations, and depreciation on
capital assets. All other revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues and expenses.
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Scholarship Allowances
Financial aid to students is reported in the basic financial statements under the alternative method
as prescribed by the National Association of College and University Business Officers (NACUBO).
Certain aid such as loans and funds provided to students as awarded by others is accounted for
as a third party payment (credited to the student's account as if the student made the payment).
All other aid is reflected in the basic financial statements as operating expenses, or scholarship
allowances, which reduce revenues. The amount reported as operating expense represents the
portion of aid that was provided to the student in the form of cash. Scholarship allowances
represent the portion of aid provided to the student in the form of reduced tuition. Tuition and fees
are shown net of scholarship allowances of $881,162 for the year ended June 30, 2015. Under
the alternative method, these amounts are computed by allocating the cash payments to students,
excluding payments for services, on the ratio of total aid to the aid not considered to be third party
aid.
3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS
The primary investment objectives of the college’s investment activities are preservation of capital,
liquidity, diversification and yield. The college’s cash and investments are comprised of the
following at June 30, 2015:
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand
Deposits with financial institutions
Brokerage cash account
Cash with county assessors
Oregon Local Government Investment Pool
Cash with PERS Obligation Bond paying agent

$

Total cash and cash equivalents

6,787
632,499
3,273
27,322
483,981
15
1,153,877

Investments:
Government and agency securities
Corporate bonds

2,169,702
245,875

Total investments

2,415,577

Total cash and investments

$
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3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Deposits with Financial Institutions – On June 30, 2015, the college held $632,499 book
balance in demand deposits with a bank balance of $703,630. Insurance and collateral
requirements for deposits are established by banking regulations and Oregon law. Where
balances exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) amount of $250,000, the
balances are covered by collateral held in a multiple financial institution collateral pool (ORS
295.015) administered by the Oregon State Treasury in the Public Funds Collateralization
Program (PFCP). As of June 30, 2015, $304,529 was covered by FDIC insurance and $399,101
were collateralized under the PFCP.
Brokerage Cash Account – The college’s brokerage cash account with Fidelity Investments is
cash awaiting reinvestment by the college’s investment advisor, Vision Capital Management, Inc.
As of June 30, 2015, the college held $3,273 in the Fidelity brokerage cash account. Fidelity
Brokerage Services, LLC (FBS) through National Financial Services, LLC (NFS) provides its
customers additional “excess Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC)” coverage from
Lloyd’s of London. This additional protection covers up to an aggregate limit of $1 billion of which
$1.9 million may cover cash awaiting reinvestment at the individual account level. This protection
becomes available in the event that SIPC limits are exhausted and is the highest level of excess
SIPC coverage currently available. No coverage protects against a decline in the market value of
securities.
Oregon Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) – The LGIP is an open-ended no-load
diversified portfolio pool offered to any agency, political subdivision or public corporation of the
state that by law is made the custodian of, or has control of, any fund. The fair value of the
college’s position in the pool is substantially the same as the value of the college’s participant
balance.
The Oregon Local Government Investment Pool is an external investment pool which is part of
the Oregon Short-Term Fund (OSTF). Investment policies are governed by the Oregon Revised
Statutes and the Oregon Investment Council (Council). The State Treasurer is the investment
officer for the Council. Investments are further governed by the portfolio guidelines issued by the
OSTF. The OSTF does not receive credit quality ratings from nationally recognized statistical
rating organizations.
Interest Rate Risk - LGIP – Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in the interest rates will
adversely affect fair value. The OSTF manages this risk by limiting the maturity of the investments
held by the fund.
Investments – ORS Chapter 294 governs the college’s investments and authorizes investment
in general obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies, certain bonded obligations of
Oregon municipalities, bank repurchase agreements, bankers’ acceptances, and the LGIP,
among others. Lawfully issued general obligations of the United States, the agencies and
instrumentalities of the United States or enterprises sponsored by the United States Government
may be rated or unrated obligations. Corporate indebtedness must be rated on the settlement
date P-1 or Aa or better by Moody’s Investors Service or A-1 or AA or better by Standard & Poor’s
Corporation or equivalent rating by any nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

28

COLUMBIA GORGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
3. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Investments (Continued) – The college’s investments are managed in accordance with an
investment advisor agreement with Vision Capital Management, Inc. and securities are held in
custody at FBS in accordance with a custodial agreement. The college President is the custodial
officer of funds within the meaning of ORS 294.035 and is authorized to make ongoing
investments of available funds without the requirement for further Board of Education approval or
directives per Board policy DFA/DG.
The LGIP is unrated. Other investments held at June 30, 2015, are categorized by rating as
follows:
Investments categorized by Moody's ratings:
Government sponsored (U.S. Treasury and Federal Agencies) (AAA)
Government sponsored (U.S. Treasury and Federal Agencies) (AA1, AA2, AA+)
Corporate bonds (AA1, AA2, AA+)
Corporate bonds (A1)

$

Total investments categorized by Moody's ratings

331,499
202,554
107,781
138,094
779,928

Unrated government securities

1,635,649

Total investments

$

2,415,577

Concentration of Credit Risk - Investments – In accordance with GASB Statement No. 40, the
college is required to report all individual non-federal investments which exceed 5% of total
invested funds. As of June 30, 2015, the college did not hold any individual non-federal
investments that exceeded 5%.
Custodial Credit Risk - Investments – Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in
the event of the failure of the counterparty, the college will not be able to recover the value of its
investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The college’s
investment securities are held in the college’s name in custody at Fidelity Investments. As of June
30, 2015, the total investments held in custody were $2,415,577.
Interest Rate Risk - Investments – As a means to limit exposure to fair value loss arising from
interest rates, the college’s investment policy requires that 100% of the college’s investments
mature in less than 18 months. Actual maturities for the college’s investments are as follows:
Actual at
June 30, 2015

Maturity less than
30 days
90 days
180 days
One year
18 months

3 %
11
28
82
100
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4. RECEIVABLES
Receivables at June 30, 2015, consist of:
Student
Grants
Property taxes
Other

$

Allowance for doubtful accounts

627,028
554,059
177,003
7,210

1,365,300
(334,183)
$ 1,031,117

5. CAPITAL ASSETS
The following table presents the changes in the various capital asset categories:
Balance
June 30, 2014
Capital assets not being
depreciated:
Land

$

Capital assets being
depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Furniture, equipment, and machinery

2,310,510

Additions

$

Balance
June 30, 2015

Deletions

-

$

-

$

2,310,510

34,245,432
2,016,667

7,019
110,716

(9,638)

34,252,451
2,117,745

Total capital assets
being depreciated

36,262,099

117,735

(9,638)

36,370,196

Total capital assets

38,572,609

117,735

(9,638)

38,680,706

(6,377,174)
(996,045)

(800,878)
(172,785)

86
760

(7,177,966)
(1,168,070)

Total accumulated
depreciation

(7,373,219)

(973,663)

846

(8,346,036)

Total capital assets
being depreciated, net

28,888,880

(855,928)

Less accumulated
depreciation f or:
Buildings and improvements
Furniture, equipment, and machinery

Total capital assets, net

$

31,199,390

$

(855,928)

(8,792)
$

(8,792)

28,024,160
$

30,334,670

The college, as lessor, leases a portion of its buildings totaling $4,462,676 with accumulated
depreciation of $1,013,027 as of June 30, 2015. See Note 11 for further information.
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6. PRE-STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT RATE POOL (SLGRP) LIABILITY
This pre-SLGRP liability amount is the difference between the total unfunded actuarial liability (UAL)
and the UAL attributable to the SLGRP for the employers that have joined the rate pool. The liability
that existed prior to the college joining the rate pool is the sole responsibility of the college and is
separate from the pooled PERS pension liability amount. At June 30, 2015, the college reported a
liability of $978,916 for its proportionate share of the pre-SLGRP liability. Annual debt service to
maturity is based on the assumed interest rate, currently 7.5% and the rate charged by OPERS,
which will be 1.85% of covered payroll for the years ending June 30, 2016 and 2017.
7. BONDS PAYABLE
The following is a summary of long-term debt transactions of the college:
Original

Outstanding

Amount

June 30, 2014

Increases

Decreases

Outstanding

Due within

June 30, 2015

one year

General Obligation Bonds:
Series 2005, interest rates 3.75-4.0%
Principal
Refunding Bonds, Series 2012, interest

$

2,855,000

$

810,000

$

-

$

(810,000) $

- $

-

rates 2.0-5.0%
Principal
Bond premium

13,790,000

13,625,000

-

(140,000)

13,485,000

1,015,000

1,125,553

935,893

-

(80,400)

855,493

-

3,570,327

2,663,920

-

(95,277)

2,568,643

95,808

-

784,381

8,878

-

793,259

-

1,500,000

1,424,000

-

(85,000)

1,339,000

87,000

(1,210,677) $

19,041,395

Pension Obligation Bond
Series 2003 original issue - current
Series 2003 original issue - deferred
Full Faith and Credit Financing
A
Series 2013 original issue
Total

$

20,243,194
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7. BONDS PAYABLE (Continued)
Future maturities of principal and interest of long-term debt are as follows:
Full Faith and Credit
General Obligation Bond

Year Ending

Principal

June 30,
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021-2025
2026-2028
Subtotal

$

Pension Obligation Bond

Interest

Principal

Financing Agreement

Interest

Principal

1,015,000
1,125,000
1,135,000
1,210,000
1,305,000
7,695,000
-

$

406,326
386,026
363,526
329,476
314,351
985,040
-

$

95,808
95,671
94,972
93,659
92,573
985,960
1,110,000

$

206,912
222,049
237,748
254,061
270,147
1,113,678
113,736

$

87,000
90,000
92,000
94,000
97,000
527,000
352,000

$ 13,485,000

$

2,784,745

$

2,568,643

$

2,418,331

$

1,339,000

Total

Interest
$

Principal

Interest

36,823
34,430
31,955
29,425
26,840
92,620
19,554

$

1,197,808
1,310,671
1,321,972
1,397,659
1,494,573
9,207,960
1,462,000

$

650,061
642,505
633,229
612,962
611,338
2,191,338
133,290

$ 271,647

$

17,392,643

$

5,474,723

General Obligation Bond Issues
On March 15, 2012, the college issued $13,790,000 in General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012, to
partially defease and refund series 2005 general obligation bonds approved by the college voters in
Hood River and Wasco Counties.
Pension Obligation Bond Issue
On April 23, 2003, the college participated with six community college districts in a pooled issuance
of limited tax pension obligation bonds to finance the college’s estimated Oregon Public Employees
Retirement System (PERS) unfunded actuarial liability. The college issued $3,570,327 in debt as
part of a pooled issuance of $153,582,300. The $3,570,327 of debt includes $1,750,327 Series
2003A deferred interest bonds and $1,820,000 Series 2003B current interest bonds. Interest on the
deferred interest bonds is accreted semiannually at yields ranging from 1.40% to 6.25%. Interest on
the current coupon bonds is payable semiannually at rates ranging from 5.60% to 5.68%. Except
for the payment of its pension bond payments and additional charges when due, each community
college district has no obligation or liability to any other participating district’s pension bonds or
liability to Oregon PERS.
Bond proceeds were paid to the Oregon Public Employees Retirement System. An intercept
agreement with the State of Oregon was required as a condition of issuance; therefore a portion of
the Community College Support Fund support is withheld on August 15, October 15 and January
15 to repay debt. Funds are accumulated and invested by a trust officer and annual principal
payments are made each June 30, and interest payments are made each June 30 and December
30, beginning December 2003 and ending June 2028. Interest rates range from 1.40% to 6.25% in
accordance with the terms stated at issuance. The college accounts for the payment of principal
and interest as pension expense annually. The college anticipates the total cost of financing the
college’s unfunded actuarial liability in this manner will result in significant savings to the college
when compared to paying for such costs as additional contribution rates to PERS.
Full Faith and Credit Financing Agreement
In 2013, the college Board approved obtaining a Full Faith and Credit Financing agreement in the
amount of $1,500,000. The purpose of the loan was to acquire and improve a property adjacent to
the current Hood River campus for possible future campus expansion.
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Pension Plans
Oregon Public Employees Retirement System
Plan Description – Employees of the college are provided with pensions through OPERS. The
college contributes to OPERS, established pursuant to ORS Chapters 238, Defined Benefit Pension
Plan (OPERS Tier I/Tier II) and 238A, Oregon Public Service Retirement Pension (OPSRP)
Program (collectively the Plan). Copies of the OPERS’ Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and
Actuarial Valuations may be obtained at:
http://www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/section/financial_reports/financials.aspx.
OPERS Tier I/Tier II The 1995 Oregon Legislature established a different level of benefits for
employees who began their six month waiting period on or before January 1, 1996 called Tier II
Two. The plan is closed to new members hired on or after August 29, 2003.
Benefits Provided
Tier One/Tier Two Retirement Benefit ORS Chapter 238
Pension Benefits – The OPERS retirement allowance is payable monthly for life. It may be selected
from 13 retirement benefit options. These options include survivorship benefits and lump-sum
refunds. The basic benefit is based on years of service and final average salary. A percentage (2.0
percent for police and fire employees, 1.67 percent for general service employees) is multiplied by
the number of years of service and the final average salary. Benefits may also be calculated either
under a formula plus annuity (for members who were contributing before August 21, 1981) or a
money match computation if a greater benefit results.
A member is considered vested and will be eligible at minimum retirement age for a service
retirement allowance if he or she has had a contribution in each of five calendar years or has reached
at least 50 years of age before ceasing employment with a participating employer (age 45 for police
and fire members). General service employees may retire after reaching age 55. Police and fire
members are eligible after reaching age 50. Tier 1 general service employee benefits are reduced
if retirement occurs prior to age 58 with fewer than 30 years of service. Police and fire member
benefits are reduced if retirement occurs prior to age 55 with fewer than 25 years of service. Tier 2
members are eligible for full benefits at age 60. The ORS Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension Plan
is closed to new members hired on or after August 29, 2003.
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Benefits Provided (Continued)
Tier One/Tier Two Retirement Benefit ORS Chapter 238 (Continued)
Death Benefits – Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives a lump-sum
refund of the member’s account balance (accumulated contributions and interest). In addition,
the beneficiary will receive a lump-sum payment from employer funds equal to the account
balance, provided one or more of the following conditions are met:





Member was employed by an OPERS employer at the time of death,
Member died within 120 days after termination of OPERS-covered employment,
Member died as a result of injury sustained while employed in an OPERS-covered job,
or
Member was on an official leave of absence from an OPERS-covered job at the time
of death.

Disability Benefits – A member with 10 or more years of creditable service who becomes
disabled from other than duty-connected causes may receive a non-duty disability benefit. A
disability resulting from a job-incurred injury or illness qualifies a member (including OPERS judge
members) for disability benefits regardless of the length of OPERS-covered service. Upon
qualifying for either a non-duty or duty disability, service time is computed to age 58 (55 for police
and fire members) when determining the monthly benefit.
Benefit Changes After Retirement – Members may choose to continue participation in a
variable equities investment account after retiring and may experience annual benefit fluctuations
due to changes in the market value of equity investments. Under ORS 238.360 monthly benefits
are adjusted annually through cost-of-living changes. Under current law, the cap on the COLA in
fiscal year 2015 and beyond will vary based on 1.25 percent on the first $60,000 of annual benefit
and 0.15 percent on annual benefits above $60,000.
Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP)
Pension Benefits – The ORS 238A Defined Benefit Pension Program provides benefits to
members hired on or after August 29, 2003. This portion of the OPSRP provides a life pension
funded by employer contributions. Benefits are calculated with the following formula for members
who attain normal retirement age:
General service: 1.5 percent is multiplied by the number of years of service and the final
average salary. Normal retirement age for general service members is age 65, or age 58
with 30 years of retirement credit.
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Oregon Public Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP)
Pension Benefits (Continued) – A member of the OPSRP pension program becomes vested on
the earliest of the following dates: the date the member completes 600 hours of service in each
of five calendar years, the date the member reaches normal retirement age, and, if the pension
program is terminated, the date on which termination becomes effective.
Death Benefits – Upon the death of a non-retired member, the spouse or other person who is
constitutionally required to be treated in the same manner as the spouse, receives for life 50
percent of the pension that would otherwise have been paid to the deceased member.
Disability Benefits – A member who has accrued 10 or more years of retirement credits before
the member becomes disabled or a member who becomes disabled due to job-related injury shall
receive a disability benefit of 45 percent of the member’s salary determined as of the last full
month of employment before the disability occurred.
Benefit Changes after Retirement – Under ORS 238A.210 monthly benefits are adjusted annually
through cost-of-living changes. Under current law, the cap on the COLA in fiscal year 2015 and
beyond will vary based on 1.25% on the first $60,000 of annual benefit and .15% on annual
benefits above $60,000.
Contributions – OPERS funding policy provides for monthly employer contributions at actuarially
determined rates. These contributions, expressed as a percentage of covered payroll, are
intended to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. This funding policy applies to
the OPERS Defined Benefit Plan and the Other Postemployment Benefit Plans. Employer
contribution rates during the period were based on the December 31, 2011 actuarial valuation, as
subsequently modified by 2013 legislated changes in benefit provisions. The rates based on a
percentage of payroll, first became effective July 1, 2013. The state of Oregon and certain
schools, community colleges, and political subdivisions have made lump sum payments to
establish side accounts, and their rates have been reduced. The college’s contributions for the
year ended June 30, 2015 were $496,715. The rates in effect for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2015 were 11.02% for Tier 1/Tier 2, 9.12% for OPSRP Pension Program general service member,
and 6% for OPSRP Individual Account Program.
Actuarial Assumptions – The employer contribution rates effective July 1, 2013, through June
30, 2015, were set using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. For the Tier 1/Tier 2
component of the OPERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced an employer contribution
rate consisting of (1) an amount for normal cost (the estimated amount necessary to finance
benefits earned by the employees during the current service year), (2) an amount for the
amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being amortized over a fixed
period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized over 20 years. For the
OPSRP Pension Program component of the OPERS Defined Benefit Plan, this method produced
an employer contribution rate consisting of (a) an amount for normal cost (the estimated amount
necessary to finance benefits earned by the employees during the current service year), (b) an
amount for the amortization of unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities, which are being amortized
over a fixed period with new unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities being amortized over 16 years.
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Actuarial Assumptions (Continued) – The total pension liability at December 31, 2012 actuarial
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions:
Valuation Date
Experience Study Report
Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method

December 31, 2012 rolled forward to June 30, 2014
2012, published September 18, 2013
Entry Age Normal
Amortized as a level percentage of payroll as layered amortization
bases over a closed period; Tier 1/Tier 2 UAL is amortized over 20
years and OPSRP pension UAL is amortized over 16 years.

Asset Valuation Method
Actuarial Assumptions:
Inflation Rate
Investment Rate of Return
Projected Salary
Increases

Market value of assets

Mortality

Healthy retirees and beneficiaries:
RP-2000 Sex-distinct, generational per Scale AA, with
collar adjustments and set-backs as described in the
valuation.

2.75 percent
7.75 percent
3.75 percent overall payroll growth; salaries for individuals are
assumed to grow at 3.75 percent plus assumed rates of
merit/longevity increases based on service.

Active members:
Mortality rates are a percentage of healthy retiree rates that
vary by group, as described in the valuation.
Disabled retirees:
Mortality rates are a percentage (65% for males, 90% for females)
of the RP-2000 static combined disabled mortality sex-distinct
table.
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of projected benefits and
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. Actuarially determined amounts
are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. Experience studies are performed as of December 31 of
even numbered years. The methods and assumptions shown above are based on the 2012
Experience Study which reviewed experience for the four-year period ending on December 31,
2012.
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Discount Rate – The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability (asset) was 7.75
percent for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and those of the contributing
employers are made at the contractually required rates, as actuarially determined. Based on
those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make
all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments for the Defined Benefit Pension Plan was applied to
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability (asset).
Long-Term Expected Rate of Return – To develop an analytical basis for the selection of the
long-term expected rate of return assumption, in July 2013 the OPERS Board reviewed long-term
assumptions developed by both Milliman’s capital market assumptions team and the Oregon
Investment Council’s (OIC) investment advisors. The table below shows Milliman’s assumptions
for each of the asset classes in which the plan was invested at that time based on the OIC longterm target asset allocation. The OIC’s description of each asset class was used to map the target
allocation to the asset classes shown below. Each asset class assumption is based on a
consistent set of underlying assumptions, and includes adjustment for the inflation assumption.
These assumptions are not based on historical returns, but instead are based on a forwardlooking capital market economic model.
Asset
Class

Target
Allocation

Core Fixed Income
Short-Term Bonds
Intermediate-Term Bonds
High Yield Bonds
Large Cap US Equities
Mid Cap US Equities
Small Cap US Equities
Developed Foreign Equities
Emerging Foreign Equities
Private Equity
Opportunity Funds/Absolute Return
Real Estate (Property)
Real Estate (REITS)
Commodities
Total

7.20%
8.00
3.00
1.80
11.65
3.88
2.27
14.21
5.49
20.00
5.00
13.75
2.50
1.25
100.00

Assumed Inflation – Mean

Compound Annual
Return
(Geometric)
4.50%
3.70
4.10
6.66
7.20
7.30
7.45
6.90
7.40
8.26
6.01
6.51
6.76
6.07

2.75

37

COLUMBIA GORGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
8. PENSION PLANS (Continued)
Sensitivity of the College’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) to
Changes in the Discount Rate – The following presents the college’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability (asset) calculated using the discount rate of 7.75 percent, as well as what
the college’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.75 percent) or one percentage point
higher (8.75 percent) than the current rate:

Proportionate share of the
net pension liability (asset)

1% Decrease
(6.75%)

Discount Rate
(7.75%)

1% Increase
(8.75%)

$2,335,735

$(1,102,990)

$(4,011,345)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position – Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary
net position is available in the separately issued OPERS financial report available at:
http://www.oregon.gov/pers/Pages/section/financial_reports/financials.aspx
Net Pension Asset, Liability, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions – At June 30, 2015, the college reported
an asset of $1,102,990 for its proportionate share of the net pension asset. The net pension
asset was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2012 and rolled
forward to June 30, 2014. The college’s proportion of the net pension asset was based on the
college’s projected long-term contribution effort as compared to the total projected long-term
contribution effort of all employers. At June 30, 2015 and 2014, the college’s proportion was
0.0486603%.
For the year ended June 30, 2015, the college recognized negative pension expense of $980,071
for the defined benefit portion of the pension plan as a result of the adoption of GASB Statement
No. 68. At June 30, 2015, the college reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions from the following sources:
Deferred Outflows of
Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience

$

-

Deferred Inflows of
Resources
$

-

Changes in assumptions

-

-

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on
pension plan investments

-

2,128,324

45,449

-

496,715

-

Changes in proportion and differences between college
contributions and proportionate share of contributions
College contributions subsequent to the measurement date
Total

$

38

542,164

$

2,128,324
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Net Pension Asset, Liability, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions – $496,715 reported as deferred outflows
of resources related to pensions resulting from college contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability (asset) in the year
ended June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
Year ended June 30:
2016

$

(522,201)

2017

(522,201)

2018

(522,201)

2019

(522,201)

2020

5,929
$

(2,082,875)

Changes in Plan Provisions Subsequent to Measurement Date – On April 30, 2015, the
Oregon Supreme Court ruled that the provisions of Senate Bill 861, signed into law in October
2013, that limited the post-retirement COLA on benefits accrued prior to the signing of the law
was unconstitutional. Benefits could be modified prospectively, but not retrospectively. As a result,
those who retired before the bills were passed will continue to receive a COLA tied to the
Consumer Price Index that normally results in a 2% increase annually. OPERS will make
restoration payments to those benefit recipients.
OPERS members who have accrued benefits before and after the effective dates of the 2013
legislation will have a blended COLA rate when they retire.
This is a change in benefit terms subsequent to the measurement date of June 30, 2014, and has
not been included in the net pension liability (asset) proportionate shares provided by OPERS.
PERS
After Moro
(estimated)

Prior to Moro
Total Pension Liability

$

Fiduciary Net Position
Net Pension Liability(asset)

63,130,000,000

$

65,400,000,000
$

(2,270,000,000)

College

68,050,000,000

Prior to Moro
$

65,400,000,000
$

2,650,000,000

39

After Moro
(estimated)

30,700,000

$

31,800,000
$

(1,100,000)

Change in Net
Pension
(asset)/liability

33,100,000
31,800,000

$

1,300,000

$

2,400,000
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8. PENSION PLANS (Continued)
OPSRP Individual Account Program (OPSRP IAP)
Plan Description – Employees of the college are provided with pensions through OPERS. All
the benefits of OPERS are established by the Oregon legislature pursuant to Oregon
Revised Statute (ORS) Chapters 238 and 238A. Chapter 238 Defined Benefit Pension Plan is
closed to new members hired on or after August 29, 2003. Chapter 238A created the Oregon
Public Service Retirement Plan (OPSRP), which consists of the Defined Benefit Pension Program
and the Individual Account Program (IAP). Membership includes public employees hired on or
after August 29, 2003. PERS members retain their existing defined benefit plan accounts, but
member contributions are deposited into the member’s IAP account. OPSRP is part of OPERS,
and is administered by the OPERS Board.
Pension Benefits – Participants in OPERS defined benefit pension plans also participate in their
defined contribution plan. An IAP member becomes vested on the date the employee account is
established or on the date the rollover account was established. If the employer makes optional
employer contributions for a member, the member becomes vested on the earliest of the following
dates: the date the member completes 600 hours of service in each of five calendar years, the
date the member reaches normal retirement age, the date the IAP is terminated, the date the
active member becomes disabled, or the date the active member dies.
Upon retirement, a member of the OPSRP IAP may receive the amounts in his or her employee
account, rollover account, and vested employer account as a lump-sum payment or in equal
installments over a 5-, 10-, 15-, 20-year period or an anticipated life span option. Each distribution
option has a $200 minimum distribution limit.
Death Benefits – Upon the death of a non-retired member, the beneficiary receives in a lump
sum the member’s account balance, rollover account balance, and vested employer optional
contribution account balance. If a retired member dies before the installment payments are
completed, the beneficiary may receive the remaining installment payments or choose a lumpsum payment.
Contributions – Employees of the college pay 6 percent of their covered payroll. The college did
not make any optional contributions to member IAP accounts for the year ended June 30, 2015.
Included in accrued payroll and taxes at June 30, 2015 are $25,401 for employee contributions
owed to the plan.
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Implicit Subsidy
Plan Description – The college is a participating district in the Oregon Educators Benefit Board
(OEBB) heath care plan that provides postemployment heath, dental, vision, and prescription
coverage benefits to eligible employees and their eligible dependents. This plan is not a standalone plan, and therefore, does not issue its own financial statements. The college has
approximately 90 employees and 6 retirees eligible for or receiving heath care coverage through
OEBB as of October 1, 2014.
The plan generally provides the employee with payment of group medical and dental insurance
premiums from retirement date until age 65. Retired employees who are eligible for the OEBB
plan may continue enrollment in the health plans on a self-pay basis until age 65.
Funding Policy – For the year ended June 30, 2015, the college retirees paid 100% of their
insurance premium costs.
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation – The college’s annual other postemployment
benefit cost (expense) is reflected on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Position on the accrual basis and is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC)
of the college, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB
Statement No. 45. Previous year’s calculations used the alternative measurement method in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on
an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded
actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The college’s most
recent actuarial valuation date was October 1, 2014, and the following table shows the
components of the college’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to
the plan, and changes in the college’s net OPEB obligation:
Annual required contribution (ARC)

$

Interest on net OPEB obligation

90,082
12,833

Adjustment to ARC

(44,088)

Annual OPEB cost

58,827

Age adjusted contributions made

(41,986)

Change in net OPEB obligation

16,841

Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year
Net OPEB obligation, end of year

366,665
$
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Implicit Subsidy (Continued)
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation (Continued)
The college’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan and
the net OPEB obligation are as follows:
Fiscal Year
Ended*
10/1/2014
6/30/2014
6/30/2013

Annual
OPEB Cost
$

Percentage of
Annual OPEB
Cost Contributed

58,827
218,557
213,325

71 %
11
20

Net OPEB
Obligation
$

383,506
366,665
170,384

*As of 6/30/12, the college did not report the OPEB obligation as determined by an actuary.

Funding Progress – As of October 1, 2014, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was
$413,040, and the actuarial value of plan assets was $0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial
accrued liability (UAAL) of $413,040. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees
covered by the plan) was $5,251,319 as of June 30, 2014 which approximates the valuation date.
For the fiscal year 2015, the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 7.9%. Using a 30-year
amortization period, the Annual Required Contribution (ARC) for 2015 has been actuarially
determined to be $90,082, representing $40,843 for the normal cost and $49,239 for amortization
of the UAAL.
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Amounts determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new
estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress presented immediately
following the notes to the basic financial statements as required supplementary information,
presents information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions – Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes
are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan
members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point.
The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the
effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets,
consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. In the October 1, 2014, actuarial
valuation, the entry age normal cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a
3.50% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), an annual healthcare cost trend
rate of 6.75%, and a 2.75% salary inflation assumption. The UAAL is being amortized as a level
percentage of projected payroll on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at October
1, 2014, was ten years.
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Retirement Health Insurance Account (RHIA)
Plan Description – As a member of PERS, the college makes contributions to the Retirement
Health Insurance Account (RHIA) for each of its eligible employees. RHIA is a cost sharing
multiple-employer defined benefit other postemployment benefit plan administered by PERS.
RHIA pays a monthly contribution toward the cost of Medicare companion health insurance
premiums of eligible retirees. Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) 238.420 established this trust
fund. The Oregon legislature has the ability to establish and amend the benefit provisions of the
RHIA. The plan is closed to new entrants after January 1, 2004.
PERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information which may be obtained by writing to Public Employees Retirement
System, P.O. Box 23700, Tigard, Oregon, 97281-3700.
Because RHIA was created by enabling legislation (ORS 238.420), contribution requirements of
the plan members and the participating employers were established and may be amended only
by the Oregon Legislature.
Funding Policy – ORS require that an amount equal to $60 or the total monthly cost of Medicare
companion health insurance premium coverage, whichever is less, shall be paid from the RHIA
established by the employer, and any monthly cost in excess of $60 shall be paid by the eligible
retired member in the manner provided in ORS 238.410. To be eligible to receive this monthly
payment the member must 1) have eight years or more of qualifying service in PERS at the time
of retirement or receive a disability allowance as if the member has eight years or more of
creditable service in PERS, 2) receive both Medicare Parts A and B coverage, and 3) enroll in a
PERS sponsored health plan. A surviving spouse or dependent of a deceased PERS retiree
who was eligible to receive the subsidy is eligible to receive the benefit if he or she is receiving
a retirement benefit or allowance from PERS or was insured at the time the member died and
the member retired before May 1, 1991.
Participating employers are contractually required to contribute to RHIA at a rate assessed each
year by PERS, currently .59% of annual covered for Tier 1/Tier 2 payroll, and .49% of OPSRP
payroll. The PERS board sets the employer contribution rate based on the annual required
contribution (ARC) of the employers, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that if paid on an ongoing
basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial
liabilities over a period not to exceed thirty years. The college's contributions to RHIA for the
years ended June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013 were approximately $28,000, $28,000, and $27,800,
respectively.
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10. RISK MANAGEMENT
The college is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage, destruction of assets,
errors and omissions; injuries to employees and natural disasters. The college is insured for the
physical damage to vehicles and carries insurance for all risks of loss, including general and auto
liability, property insurance, crime coverage, equipment breakdown coverage, and workers’
compensation. General liability insurance generally covers casualty losses with a loss limit of $10
million per occurrence and a $20 million aggregate loss limit. The college’s property insurance
and equipment breakdown total loss limit is approximately $70,600,000 with a $10,000 property
deductible and equipment deductible of $1,000 or $5,000 depending on motor size. Auto liability
is the same as general liability with $100 comprehensive and $500 collision deductible.
Earthquake and flood coverage has a loss limit of $15 million. Crime coverage has a loss limit of
$250,000. Workers’ compensation insurance provides statutory coverage and $1 million
employer’s liability coverage. There was no significant reduction in the college’s insurance
coverage during the year ended June 30, 2015, and no insurance settlement exceeded insurance
coverage for the past three years.
11. LEASES
Leases as Lessor
The college has entered into several lease agreements to other entities for offices, equipment
space, or land owned by the college. Future revenue collections on these leases are as follows:
Year Ending
June 30,
2016
2017
2018
2019
Thereafter

$

169,000
153,000
148,000
54,000
1,000

Total

$

525,000

Commencing February 1, 2008, the college (lessor) entered into a ground lease agreement with
the State of Oregon, acting by and through the Oregon Military Department (lessee), for certain
real property involving land and an easement for a term of 50 years, with an additional automatic
option to extend an additional 50 years. Rent for the entire term is $1. This lease is related to
the National Guard Readiness Center constructed on real property. See leases as lessee.
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11. LEASES (Continued)
Leases as Lessee
In January 2014, the college entered into a lease for 13,087 square feet of exclusive space and
27,279 square feet of shared space with the State of Oregon acting by and through the Oregon
Military Department to lease space in the new National Guard Readiness Center built on the
property described in leases as lessor. There are no payment terms related to this lease. The
initial term of the lease expires February 1, 2058 with an option to renew for an additional 50 years
which is consistent with the ground lease discussed above under leases as lessor.
The college has also entered into agreements to lease office equipment through March 2019.
Total rent expense for the year ended June 30, 2015 approximated $72,000. Future commitments
on these leases are as follows:
Year Ending
June 30,
2016
2017
2018
2019

$

39,000
38,000
38,000
28,000

Total

$

143,000

12. RELATED ORGANIZATION
The Columbia Gorge Community College Foundation (the Foundation) is a legally separate, taxexempt not-for-profit corporation. The Foundation’s Board of Trustees is independently
appointed. The Foundation is responsible for approving its own budget, accounting, and financerelated activities. The college is not able to impose its will on the Foundation. The Foundation is
not considered a component unit of the college, as defined by GASB Statement No. 61.
Summarized financial information from internally prepared financial statements, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2015 is:

Total assets

$

1,278,400

Total net assets

1,278,400

Total revenues, gains, and other support

1,516,616

Total expenses

238,215

45

COLUMBIA GORGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
13. RESTATEMENTS
The college has restated its net position for adoption of the provision of GASB Statement No. 68
and No. 71. The restatement also records the college’s actuarially determined liability prior to
joining the SLGRP, which was not included in the PERS pension liability amount. In addition,
net position was restated for the recognition of accreted interest not previously recorded for its
Series 2003A Limited Tax Pension Bonds. The effects of these restatements are as follows:

Net position as of June 30, 2014 (as previously reported)
Restatement of prior year net position
for the cumulative effect of
implementing GASB Statement No. 68:
Net prepaid pension asset
Deferred outflows of resources:
contributions during measurement period
Deferred inflows of resources:
Net pension liability
Pre-SLGRP liability
PERS bond deferred accrued interest
payable

$

20,558,877

(1,944,171)
523,250
(2,483,206)
(1,027,598)
(784,381)
(5,716,106)

Total restatement
Net position as of June 30, 2014 (as restated)
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$

14,842,771

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

COLUMBIA GORGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
BUDGETARY INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Oregon Administrative Rules require an individual Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance, Budget and Actual, be prepared for each fund which the College is
legally required to budget.

MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
The College focuses on changes in current financial resources in the preparation, adoption and
execution of annual budgets for the College’s funds. The modified accrual basis of accounting is
used to account for transactions or events that have increased or decreased the resources
available for spending in the near future. The budget schedules include all transactions or events
that affect the fund’s current financial resources, even though these transactions may not affect
net position. Such transactions include:
Issuance of debt
Debt service principal payments
Capital outlay
Revenues are recognized when they are susceptible to accrual. To be susceptible to accrual, the
revenue must be both measurable and available. Measurable means the amount of the
transaction can be determined. Available means collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The College deems revenues received
within 60 days of the end of the fiscal year to be available and subject to accrual. Expenditures
are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on general
long-term debt, which is recognized when due, and certain compensated absences and claims
and judgments, which are recorded only when expected to be liquidated with available expendable
financial resources. State support is recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to
accrual criteria are met. Expenditure-driven grant revenue is recognized when the qualifying
expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met. Other receipts,
including property taxes, become measurable and available when cash is received by the College
and recognized as revenue at that time.

STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
The appropriations resolution for the General Fund contains amounts for instruction, academic
support, student services, institutional support, financial aid, plant operation and maintenance,
and contingency. For all other funds, the appropriations resolution contains amounts for personal
services, materials and services, debt service, capital outlay, fund transfers and an operating
contingency, if needed. This is the legal level of control for authorized expenditures.
The level of expenditures is monitored throughout the year. Transfers are made from operating
contingency or between the major object classifications of the appropriation for each fund as
required to prevent an over expenditure. Such budget changes require Board of Education
approval.
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STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)
Budget amounts shown in the individual fund financial schedules include appropriation transfers
and appropriations increases pursuant to ORS 294.326(2), which allows for appropriations
increases for unanticipated specific purpose grants. All appropriations transfers and increases are
approved by the Board of Education. Appropriations for all funds lapse at the end of each fiscal
year.
DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS
The College has the following funds:
The General Fund accounts for the financial operations of the College not accounted for in any
other fund. Major sources of revenue are local property taxes, state operational reimbursement
based on full-time equivalent enrollment, and tuition and fees collected from students.
Expenditures are for contracted instruction services including instructors’ and administrative
salaries and benefits, supplies, administrative costs, plant operations and capital outlay.
The Building Lease Fund is used to record the revenues and expenditures relating to leasing office
space to various agencies.
The Food Service Fund accounts for the revenues and expenditures of the campus food service
contract.
The Federal Student Aid Fund accounts for the administration of Federal Student Aid for all eligible
students.
The Grants Fund accounts for the administration of non-Federal grants received by the college.
The Scholarship Fund accounts for the scholarships awarded to the College’s students receiving
scholarships from the Foundation.
The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the full faith and credit agreement obtained to purchase
property in Hood River and complete site improvements as approved by the Board of Education
in April 2013.
The State Capital Projects Fund accounts for State of Oregon capital construction and
improvements projects.
The Wasco County G.O. Bonds Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources to pay
the principal and interest on the Refunding General Obligation Bonds, Series 1998.
The District G.O. Bonds Fund accounts for the accumulation of resources to pay the principal and
interest on General Obligation Bonds, Series 2005 approved by district voters of Hood River and
Wasco Counties. These bonds were refunded in March, 2012.
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DESCRIPTION OF FUNDS (Continued)
The Pension Bond Debt Service Fund is established to account for the accumulation of resources
to pay the principal and interest on pension obligation bonds issued by the College in 2003 and is
funded by a credit to the College’s PERS employer rate beginning May 1, 2003.
The College Bookstore Fund is used to record revenues and expenditures relating to textbooks
and supplies made available to the students. Revenues are text and supply sales. Expenditures
are for purchases of resale items.
The Facilities and Grounds Maintenance Reserve Fund was established to accumulate resources
for financing facilities and ground maintenance.
The General Operations Reserve Fund was established to accumulate resources for future
funding of general operations. Transfers are budgeted between the General Fund and the General
Operations Reserve Fund to smooth the effects of the uneven community college support fund
payments in each year of the biennium. The remaining balance is expected to be depleted in the
following biennium.
The Instructional Equipment Replacement Reserve Fund was established to provide funding for
replacement of instructional equipment as the useful life expires. Any funds not expended will
remain in the fund for future use. A budgeted transfer will increase the balance each year.
The Clubs Fund accounts for the activities of the student-organized Environmental Club, PhiTheta
Kappa, Student Council, Student Nurse Association, Delta Energy Club, and
Multicultural Club.
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COMPLIANCE SECTION

SINGLE AUDIT COMPLIANCE

COLUMBIA GORGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
Financial Statements:
Type of auditor’s report issued:

Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?

No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified
not considered to be material
weakness(es)?

Yes

Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted?

No

Federal Awards:
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?

No

Significant deficiency(ies) identified
not considered to be material
weakness(es)?

Yes

Type of auditor’s report issued on
compliance for major programs

Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance
with Section 510 (a) of Circular A-133?

Yes

Identification of major programs:
CFDA NUMBERS
84.268; 84.063; 84.007; 84.033
84.031

NAME OF FEDERAL PROGRAM OR CLUSTER
Student Financial Assistance Cluster
Higher Education_Institutional Aid

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between type A and B programs:

$300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

No
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SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDING
Finding 2015-001
Criteria:

The College should consistently reconcile its accounts and sub-ledgers to the
general ledger.

Condition:

We noted that the College has not reconciled its accounts receivable sub-ledgers
to the control accounts in the general ledger for both student receivables and
agency receivables for several years. In addition, there is a continuing off-setting
variance between the two control accounts.

Context:

The accounting system can only create a sub-ledger listing as of the current date.
In addition to the system limitations, limited staffing resources have resulted in
these two reconciliations not being completed and corrections posted to the control
accounts in the general ledger.

Cause:

The College has not prepared reconciliations of the student receivable and agency
receivable control accounts in the general ledger to their respective sub-ledgers in
several years and posted correcting entries to the control accounts in the general
ledger for the differences.

Effect:

The lack of reconciliation of control accounts in the general ledger to accounts
receivable sub-ledgers exposes the College to risk of material errors or
misstatements in the annual financial report.

Recommendation:

We recommend that management employ proper resources to address the timely
reconciliation of accounts receivables sub-ledgers to the control accounts in the
general ledger.

View of Responsible
Official:

The College understands and concurs with the finding and recommendation.

SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Finding 2015-002 (repeat finding 2014-009)
Federal Program:

CFDA No. 84.268; 84.063; 84.007; 84.033 Student Financial Assistance Cluster

Federal Agency:

U.S. Department of Education

Award Year:

2014-15

Criteria:

The A-102 Common Rule and OMB Circular A-110 (2 CFR part 215) require that
non-Federal entities receiving Federal awards establish and maintain internal
control designed to reasonably ensure compliance with Federal laws,
regulations, and program compliance requirements. Under provisions of the
Higher Education Act, the Department’s regulations, and related guidance,
schools are required to confirm and report the enrollment status of students who
receive most types of Federal student aid, including aid from the Federal Pell
Grant Program and the William D. Ford Federal Direct Loan (Direct Loan)
Program. Schools are to report the enrollment status of students who received
Title IV aid to National Student Loan Data System (NSLDS). This enrollment
information is updated in NSLDS and, as appropriate, is reported to guarantors,
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SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (Continued)
Finding 2015-002 (repeat finding 2014-009) (Continued)
lenders, and servicers of federal student loans (Direct Loan, 34 CFR section
685.309). A student’s enrollment status determines eligibility for in-school status,
deferment, and grace periods, as well as for the payment of interest subsidies to
Federal Family Education Loan (FFEL) Program loan holders by the Department
of Education. Enrollment reporting in a timely and accurate manner is critical for
effective management of the programs. Enrollment information must be reported
within 30 days whenever attendance changes for students, unless a roster will be
submitted within 60 days. These changes include reductions or increases in
attendance levels, withdrawals, graduations, or approved leaves-of-absence.
Condition:

The College lacks physical evidence of review over accurate and timely reporting
of student enrollment changes to NSLDS.

Questioned Costs:

As this finding relates to the timely and accurate reporting of enrollment status,
there are no amounts of questioned cost identified.

Context:

Changes to a student’s enrollment status should be reported within 30 days of
the change to NSLDS. It was noted that none of the three months selected for
testing had evidence documenting review to ensure timely reporting of student
enrollment changes.

Cause:

The College implemented a corrective action plan in December 2014 in response
to finding 2014-009. When the financial aid director position turned over in
March 2015, the control was no longer performed.

Effect:

Lack of sufficient documentation in support of effective internal controls could
result in untimely reporting of student enrollment changes. A student’s enrollment
status determines eligibility for in-school status as well as deferment and grace
periods for loans. Enrollment reporting is not only critical for effective
administration of the Title IV student loan programs, but is also required so that
the Department can engage in budgetary and policy analysis.

Recommendation:

We recommend management re-implement policies and procedures to provide
for documentation supporting the effective review of borrower data transmission
and reconciliation for direct loan programs under federal programs.

View of Responsible
Official:

The College understands and concurs with the finding and recommendation.
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Finding 2015-003
Federal Program:

CFDA No. 84.268; 84.063; 84.007; 84.033 Student Financial Assistance Cluster

Federal Agency:

U.S. Department of Education

Award Year:

2014-15

Criteria:

The OMB Circular A-133, Part 5 Section N.8 requires that institutions must report
all loan disbursements and submit required records to the Direct Loan Servicing
System (DLSS) via the COD within 30 days of disbursement (OMB No. 18450021). Each month, the COD provides institutions with a School Account
Statement (SAS) data file which consists of a Cash Summary, Cash Detail, and
(optional at the request of the school) Loan Detail records. Institutions are
required to reconcile SAS data files to institution records each month.

Condition:

From a population of 12 reconciliations, four were selected for testing. Of those,
three of the four reconciliations were found not to have been performed timely.

Questioned Costs:

As this finding relates to the timely reconciliation of the SAS, there are no
amounts of questioned cost identified.

Context:

The College is reconciling the SAS and institutional records, however, the
reconciliations are not happening on a monthly basis as required.

Cause:

During the transition of the incumbent director of Financial Aid to their successor,
the timeliness of these reconciliations was impacted.

Effect:

Lack of reconciliation with institutional records could result in errors involving
cash receipts and disbursements going unresolved indefinitely. Transactions
between the College and the Department of Education, students and the
Department of Education, and students and the College may be affected.
Monthly SAS reconciliations support effective administration of the Title IV Pell
and Direct Loan programs, and they are also required so that the College can
engage in budgetary and policy analysis.

Recommendation:

We recommend management perform the SAS reconciliation within 30 days of
the end of each month.

View of Responsible
Official:

The College understands and concurs with the finding and recommendation.
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Finding 2015-004
Federal Program:

CFDA 84.031 Higher Education_Institutional Aid

Federal Agency:

U.S. Department of Education

Award Year:

2014-15

Criteria:

Under 2 CFR Section 180.220, non-Federal entities are prohibited from
contracting with or making subawards under covered transactions to parties that
are suspended or debarred. “Covered transactions” include those procurement
contracts for goods and services awarded under a non-procurement transaction
(e.g., grant or cooperative agreement) that are expected to equal or exceed
$25,000 or meet certain other criteria as specified in 2 CFR section 180.220. All
non-procurement transactions entered into by a recipient (i.e., subawards to
subrecipients), irrespective of award amount, are considered covered
transactions, unless they are exempt as provided in 2 CFR section 180.21.

Condition:

The College entered into a contract exceeding $25,000 and was unable to
provide documentation that the vendor had been reviewed for suspension and
debarment.

Questioned Costs:

As subsequent review of the vendor for suspension and debarment was
executed and the vendor was neither, suspended or debarred, therefore no
questioned costs have been identified.

Context:

Non-federal entities are prohibited from contracting with or making subawards
under covered transactions to parties that are suspended or debarred or whose
principal(s) are suspended or debarred. The College could not provide proof for
one of the eight procurements tested that the vendor had been checked for
suspension and debarment.

Effect:

Failure to verify suspension and debarment for covered transactions could result
in entering into agreements with parties who are suspended or debarred and the
potential loss of federal funding.

Cause:

Misfiled documents or a lack of understanding related to suspension and
debarment compliance requirements caused the oversight in review of the
vendor for suspension and debarment.

Recommendation:

We recommend management develop and implement policies and procedures to
provide appropriate documentation supporting effective review and approval of
contracts of $25,000 or more.

View of responsible
official:

The College understands and concurs with the finding and recommendation.
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Finding 2014-001
Audit Finding:

Corrective Action
Taken:

The College should have a system of internal controls in place to monitor the
classification of their investments’ to ensure compliance in accordance with their
investment policy as well as Oregon Revised Statutes. The College engages an
independent investment advisor to manage the investment of excess funds.
However, the investment advisor doesn’t monitor compliance in accordance with
the College’s investment policy or Oregon Revised Statues.

The College developed and implemented an investment policy that includes a
scheduled review with the investment advisor on a periodic basis to confirm
compliance. This matter is considered resolved.

Finding 2014-002
Audit Finding:

Corrective Action
Taken:

The College should have a system of internal controls in place such that the
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the SEFA) is reviewed and
compared to the general ledger for completeness and accuracy on an annual
basis before being presented for audit. During our review of the preparation of
the SEFA, we noted that there were several errors indicating there was not a
sufficient review over the preparation of the SEFA.

The College’s business office is adequately staffed which allowed for sufficient
review of the SEFA. This matter is considered resolved.

Finding 2014-003
Audit Finding:

Corrective Action
Taken:

The College should have a system of internal controls in place such that
misstatements of the accounting records and financial statement reporting would
be prevented, or detected and corrected by management or employees in the
normal course of their duties. We noted several errors in the accounting records
that resulted in audit adjustments which changed the annual financial report.
During our audit procedures, entries were posted to correct balances relating to
various accounts including property taxes receivable, deferred property tax
revenue, property tax revenue, and accounts payable.

The College received advice on how to simplify its process for recording property
taxes, however found this process not preferable for budget purposes. In lieu of
revising the process, increased supervision and review was provided over the
monthly adjustments. This matter is considered resolved.
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Finding 2014-004
Audit Finding:

Corrective Action
Taken:

The College should have a system of internal controls in place such that
misstatements of the capital asset accounting records would be prevented, or
detected and corrected by management or employees in the normal course of
their duties. Duties should be segregated to the extent possible in order to
separate the initiation, authorization and review of transactions. During our audit
procedures over capital assets, we noted that the College had an asset recorded
that did not meet the capitalization threshold and that there were errors in the
calculation of depreciation expense.

The College has implemented procedures, including review of the capital asset
detail at year-end, to ensure that capital assets are properly recorded. This
matter is considered resolved.

Finding 2014-005
Audit Finding:

Corrective Action
Taken:

The College should have a system of internal controls in place such that proper
bidding procedures have been followed in accordance with the College’s
procurement policies for purchases between $5,000 and $75,000. There was no
evidence of review that three quotes or sole source justification was obtained
before a purchase order was executed, as appropriate.

The College has instituted a new procedure which requires three-quotes or sole
source justification to be on file in the business office before purchase orders
valued over $5,000 are approved by the CFO. This matter is considered
resolved.

Finding 2014-006
Audit Finding:

Corrective Action
Taken:

The College should have a system of internal controls such that misstatements of
the payroll accounting records would be prevented, or detected and corrected by
management or employees in the normal course of their duties. Duties should
be segregated to the extent possible in order to separate the initiation,
authorization and review of transactions. We noted several errors in payroll
liability and expense general ledger accounts. These errors were not detected
through processes or controls over payroll financial reporting. Audit procedures
performed over payroll expense and related benefit expense accounts noted
classification errors.

The College has fully implemented a new payroll system which has mitigated
classification errors. This matter is considered resolved.

84

COLUMBIA GORGE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS (Continued)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
Finding 2014-007 (repeat finding 2013-009)
Federal Program:

CFDA No. 84.268; 84.063; 84.007; 84.033 Student Financial Assistance Cluster
CFDA No. 93.575 CCDF Cluster

Federal Agency:

U.S. Department of Education

Award Year:

2013-14

Audit Finding:

OMB Circular A-133, Subpart C, Section _.320 requires that the audit shall be
completed and the Data Collection Form and reporting package shall be
submitted within the earlier of 30 days after receipt of the auditor’s reports, or
nine months after the end of the audit period, unless a longer period is agreed to
in advance by the cognizant or oversight agency for audit. The College’s
reporting package was not submitted by the earlier date of either 30 days after
receipt of the auditor’s report or nine months after the end of fiscal year June 30,
2013. The single audit reporting was dated April 17, 2014.

Corrective Action
Taken:

The 2013-2014 audit was completed three-months earlier than the previous
year’s audit and therefore the College was able to submit the reporting package
before the deadline. This matter is considered resolved.

Finding 2014-008 (repeat finding 2013-012)
Federal Program:

CFDA No. 84.268; 84.063; 84.007; 84.033 Student Financial Assistance Cluster

Federal Agency:

U.S. Department of Education

Award Year:

2013-14

Audit Finding:

In accordance with 34 CFR sections 668.22(a)(1) through (a)(5)), when a
recipient of Title IV grant or loan assistance withdraws from an institution during a
payment period or period of enrollment in which the recipient began attendance,
the institution must determine the amount of Title IV aid earned by the student as
of the student’s withdrawal date. If the total amount of Title IV assistance earned
by the student is less than the amount that was disbursed to the student or on his
or her behalf as of the date of the institution’s determination that the student
withdrew, the difference must be returned to the Title IV programs as outlined in
this section and no additional disbursements may be made to the student for the
payment period or period of enrollment. If the amount the student earned is
greater than the amount disbursed, the difference between the amounts must be
treated as a post-withdrawal disbursement. The College lacked physical
evidence of effective review over the return of Title IV funding to the Department
of Education for a portion of the fiscal year. During the year, the College
implemented a process evidencing review.

Corrective Action
Taken:

The College has implemented a two-step sign-off process to address this issue.
One financial aid staff member runs the report that lists the affected students and
runs the utility calculation. A second staff member adjusts the student awards,
sends a revised award letter, and emails the correspondence letter to the
student. Both staff members sign-off on the process. This process was
implemented part way through the previous fiscal year with no findings of
insufficient student record review occurring after the policy was in effect. This
matter is considered resolved.
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Finding 2014-009 (Repeated as finding 2015-002)
Federal Program:

CFDA No. 84.268; 84.063; 84.007; 84.033 Student Financial Assistance Cluster

Federal Agency:

U.S. Department of Education

Award Year:

2013-14

Criteria:

The A-102 Common Rule and OMB Circular A-110 (2 CFR part 215) require that
non-Federal entities receiving Federal awards establish and maintain internal
control designed to reasonably ensure compliance with Federal laws,
regulations, and program compliance requirements. Under provisions of the
Higher Education Act, the Department’s regulations, and related guidance,
schools are required to confirm and report the enrollment status of students who
receive most types of Federal student aid, including aid from the Federal Pell
Grant Program and the William D. Ford Federal Direct Loan (Direct Loan)
Program. Schools are to report the enrollment status of students who received
Title IV aid to National Student Loan Data System (NSLDS). This enrollment
information is updated in NSLDS and, as appropriate, is reported to guarantors,
lenders, and servicers of federal student loans (Direct Loan, 34 CFR section
685.309). A student’s enrollment status determines eligibility for in-school status,
deferment, and grace periods, as well as for the payment of interest subsidies to
Federal Family Education Loan (FFEL) Program loan holders by the Department
of Education. Enrollment reporting in a timely and accurate manner is critical for
effective management of the programs. Enrollment information must be reported
within 30 days whenever attendance changes for students, unless a roster will be
submitted within 60 days. These changes include reductions or increases in
attendance levels, withdrawals, graduations, or approved leaves-of-absence.

Condition:

The College lacks physical evidence of review over accurate and timely reporting
of student enrollment changes to NSLDS which caused four students to be
reported outside the 30 day requirement.

Questioned Costs:

As this finding relates to the timely and accurate reporting of enrollment status,
there are no amounts of questioned cost identified.

Context:

Out of a population of 108 students receiving Financial Aid, 14 students were
selected for testing. TKW determined five student records to be out of
compliance with 30 day reporting requirement. In addition, one of the five
students had an incorrect enrollment status within NSLDS.

Cause:

It appears the College does not have a system of controls in place to review the
accuracy of student enrollment data submitted to NSLDS and ensure that timely
reporting is occurring.

Effect:

A student’s enrollment status determines eligibility for in-school status as well as
deferment and grace periods for loans. Enrollment reporting is not only critical for
effective administration of the Title IV student loan programs, but is also required
so that the Department can engage in budgetary and policy analysis.
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Finding 2014-009 (Continued)
Recommendation:

Corrective Action
Taken:

We recommend management develop and implement policies and procedures to
provide for documentation supporting the effective review of borrower data
transmission and reconciliation for direct loan programs under federal programs.

The College will implement new policies and procedures to ensure enrollment
changes are reported within the 30 day requirement.
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Finding 2015-001
Corrective Actions Taken or Planned: The college has continually refined the reconciliation
process to reconcile accounts receivable to the general ledger. The college has put together the
final steps in solidifying the new reconciliation process. The college will generate the accounts
receivable aging report and the accounts with balances report on the last day of each month. This
will be used to reconcile to the general ledger. This work will be performed by the Controller and
approved by the Chief Financial Officer. Hard copies will be retained by the Controller and
electronically scanned into files.
Finding 2015-002
Corrective Actions Taken or Planned: The position of Financial Aid Director was filled on a
permanent basis in July 2015. The Director of Financial Aid will meet with the Registrar monthly
to verify enrollment reporting. The Director of Financial Aid will also keep digital and hard copies
of the Enrollment Reporting Report requested from NSLDS.
Finding 2015-003
Corrective Actions Taken or Planned: The position of Financial Aid Director was filled on a
permanent basis in July 2015. The Director of Financial Aid will pull reports monthly and
coordinate with management in the Business Office to complete the reconciliations; signing hard
copies when the reconciliation is complete.
Finding 2014-004
Corrective Actions Taken or Planned: Responsibility for college purchasing has transitioned
to the Business Office under the management of the Chief Financial Officer who has training and
experience administering federally funded procurements. The college has modified its
procurement form for purchases over the amount of $5,000. The form now identifies whether the
purchase uses federal funds. The procurement form must be reviewed and signed by the Chief
Financial Officer before issuance of a purchase order. It is now the responsibility of the Chief
Financial Officer to verify suspension or debarment for covered transactions as identified on the
revised procurement form.
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